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PROPOSAL STATEMENT 

 
 

The Landmarks Commission of the City of North Olmsted has researched and assembled the 
documented historical information contained in this Landmark Designation Proposal. The 
Commission recommends that the Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph House be designated 
as a Landmark and a plaque signifying such status be affixed to the front of the house, directly 
adjacent to the existing NORTH OLMSTED HISTORIC BUILDING plaque. 
 
This proposal for Landmark Designation is in conformance with the CHARTER OF THE CITY 
OF NORTH OLMSTED, ARTICLE 7, BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS, SECTION 6, 
LANDMARKS COMMISSION, Paragraph 165.05 DESIGNATION OF LANDMARKS, which 
states:  
 

(a)  A building or other structure may be designated by the Commission as a landmark if 
the Commission determines, on the basis of the evidence before it, that the building or 
other structure meets two (2) or more of the following criteria: 

(1)  It has character, interest or value, as part of the development, heritage or 
cultural characteristics of the City, State or Nation: 
(2)  It is the site of an historic event with an effect upon society: 
(3)  It is identified with a person or group of persons who had some influence on 
society: or 
(4)  It exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historic heritage of 
the community. 
 

The Knight - Biddulph house, along with the contributions of the Knight and Biddulph families, 
in Dover Township, Olmstead Township and North Olmsted, Ohio, meet the criteria listed above 
in items (1) and (4) of paragraph 165.05, for the designation of Landmark status. 
 
This Landmark Designation Proposal is being submitted respectively to the City of North 
Olmsted Planning Commission and the North Olmsted City Council, for their review and 
approval, and the granting of Landmark status to the Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph 
House. 
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SECTION 1 
 

DESCRIPTION AND HISTORY 
 
 

Architectural Description 
 
• Construction: Stone exterior bearing walls and foundation, wood framing and full basement.  

• Year Built: 1860 (year of completion) 

• Architectural Style: Moderate Italianate. Only stone house in North Olmsted. 

• Design of 1860 House: Two-story structure with living area on first floor and bedrooms on 

second floor. 

• Area of 1860 house: First Floor 1,418 S.F., Second Floor 835 S.F., Total Area 2,253 S.F. 

• Area of Kitchen Addition (ca 1982): First Floor 287 S.F., Stair and Second Floor: 287 S.F. 

• Area of 2013 house: 2,827 S. F., plus 400 S. F. attached garage added ca 1982. 

• Total area of house and garage: 3,227 S.F. 

• Additional freestanding garage on property: 800 Sq. Ft. 

 

Italianate Architectural Style 
        
The Italianate style originated in England. It derived from Italy’s rambling farmhouses, usually 
built of masonry with characteristic square towers and informal detailing. By 1830 Italianate had 
spread to the United States where architects began to transform the style into something truly 
American, with only hints of the Italian origin. Working in the Italianate style, American 
architects had a higher degree of artistic freedom than they had in earlier, more rigid architectural 
styles. 
        
Much of the Italianate style’s popularity can be credited to architect Andrew Jackson Downing, 
whose own Italianate home designs were featured in two books he published: Cottage 
Residences (1842) and The Architecture of Country Houses (1850), the latter was published the 
year Richard H. Knight and his brother-in-law Simon L. Beebe divided their property on Lot 4 in 
Dover Township.    



 

 

Widely read by home designers and the public alike, his influential book set off a wave of 
Italianate homebuilding around the country. It is safe to assume that Richard Harrison Knight 
was aware of Downing’s books on Italianate architectural style when he began to design and 
build his new stone mansion on Porter Road between the years 1850 and 1860. 
        
The typical Italianate design was a two story building, but examples survive of many variations 
from three-story detached homes with towers and cupolas to urban townhouses. There were six 
basic categories: box with hip roof, box with a centered gable, L or U plan and L plan with a 
tower and a front gable. The Knight house most resembles the box design with a hip roof. 
        
The Italianate town houses are identifiable by their wide projecting cornices with heavy brackets 
and their richly ornamented windows, porches and doorways. Most American examples of 
Italianate homes mix details derived from both rural models and formal renaissance townhouses. 
This description fits the Knight house well. The house has a wide projecting cornice with heavy 
brackets and some ornamental treatment of the main doorway.  
        
Doors occurred in as much variety as windows. Paired and single doors were both common in 
Italianate homes, often announcing themselves with a large, elaborate hood supported by 
brackets. Italianate doors were the first to have large panes of glass in the door itself in lieu of 
side lights with small panes. The Knight house has a pair of entrance doors in a heavy frame. 
        
Italianate window sashes typically had one-over-one or two-over-two glazing. Window trim had 
exuberant variations including U-shaped crowns with brackets or pediment crowns with 
decorated hoods. The windows in the Knight house are beautifully placed in a formal pattern in 
the façade. They are tall rectangular windows. However, they are not the arched and curved 
windows which were popularized in America by the Italianate trend. 
        
Brick and wood clapboard were the most common building materials for Italianate homes with 
brick being more expensive. The ornamentation was typically wood and occasionally the brick 
homes had elaborate, durable cast iron window and door hoods. The Knight house is built with a 
stone finish on the exterior, a clear step above clapboard, less formal than brick. The exterior 
ornamentation is wood. 
       
Italianate roofs were low pitched, often with a square cupola on top. Projecting eaves with large 
brackets in a variety of shapes and spacing dominated the cornice. Arranged singly or in pairs, 
the brackets were usually underscored with wide decorative bands and sometimes further 
elaborated with panel moldings. This description fits the Knight house well for the cornice and 
roof, although there is no cupola on the roof. 
        
Based on the description of the Italianate Style given above, we have used the term “Moderate 
Italianate” to describe the Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph house. 
 
Note: The information contained herein on Italianate Style was adapted from descriptions written 
by architect Bruce Wentworth AIA. 
 



 

 

History of the Knight-Biddulph House 
 
The Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph house at 4302 Porter Road has been an important 
part of North Olmsted’s history for more than one hundred and fifty-two years. It is important for 
its unique architectural design and style, as well as the history surrounding the lives of its many 
owners and occupants. 
 
It is the only stone house in North Olmsted. It is Italianate style in design. It was built by Richard 
Harrison Knight between 1850 and 1860, on Lot 4 in Dover Township. Dover was Township 7 
in Range 15 of the Connecticut Western Reserve. 
 

 
 

William Biddulph family at the R. H. Knight – Wm Biddulph house around 1900 
 
Richard Knight, who in later years became the publisher of the Akron City Times in Akron, Ohio, 
was the second son in a family of seven children born to Jonathan and Deborah (Barber) Knight 
of Connecticut. Richard was born November 11, 1813 in Litchfield County in Connecticut. His 
father, Jonathan Knight was of English descent, but was born in Norwich, Connecticut, where he 
followed farming until 1832, the year he moved his family to Ohio. Jonathan and Deborah 
Knight settled in Ridgeville Township, Ohio and resided there until their deaths. They had three 
sons and four daughters. 
 
On December 31, 1837, Richard Knight, a young man of 24, and Miss Emma Beebe, age 17, of 
Ridgeville Township, were married. After their marriage, they lived near Emma’s brother, 
Sidney L. Beebe and his wife, Sylva Lucetta (Hickox), in Ridgeville Township. 
 



 

 

Richard Knight followed farming and stone cutting in Lorain County for fourteen years, from 
1832 until 1846. He worked in various capacities of stone-work in Elyria, in addition to working 
on the Cleveland, Columbus and Cincinnati Railroad.  
 
In 1846 the Knight and Beebe families wanted to relocate to Dover Township in Cuyahoga 
County. At that time Richard and Emma Knight had two children, a son, Eber, born in 1838, and 
a daughter, Ellen, born in 1840. 
 
On December 5, 1846, Richard, then 33, and his brother-in-law Sidney, together paid Ebenezer 
Porter a handsome sum of $1,600 for 140 acres of the original 160 acres of land on Lot 4 in 
Dover Township. Lot 4 had previously been owned jointly by Nehemiah Hubbard and Joshua 
Stow of Connecticut, the original investors in Dover Township when it was surveyed and 
established in 1806. Hubbard and Stow eventually divided their Dover land holdings equally and 
Nehemiah Hubbard became the sole owner of Lot 4, along with the other lots he owned in his 
half of the township. On June 25, 1832, Hubbard sold the 160 acre Lot 4 to Ebenezer Porter for a 
mere $400. Thirteen years later, on Christmas day in 1845, Ebenezer’s brother, John Porter 
acquired a 20 acre portion in the northwest corner of Lot 4, through a sheriff’s deed issued by 
Huron Beebe. One year later, Ebenezer made a fine profit on the sale of his land to Knight and 
Beebe. The Porter brothers were sons of Joseph Porter, a soldier in the Revolutionary War, who 
was a widower when he came to Dover in 1826.  
 
There was a stone quarry on Lot 4. The quarry eventually became one of the quarries owned by 
E. C. Harris and William Geiger. It was referred to as having an excellent quality of building 
stone, much used in the township and elsewhere, and found in the southwest part of Dover. The 
Harris and Geiger stone quarries long yielded large supplies, “although the former quarry on Lot 
4 was not being worked to any great extent as of 1879.” 
 
On January 4, 1850, Knight and Beebe agreed by quitclaim deed to divide their 140 acre 
property between themselves. For the sum of one dollar, Richard retained seventy-one and one 
half acres on the easterly half of Lot 4. Sidney retained sixty-eight and one half acres on the 
westerly half of Lot 4. The quitclaim deed reserved a right of way along the north line of the 
property, one half the trees in the nursery and one third the apples, not to exceed fifty bushels in 
any one year. The deed also granted unrestricted use of the part of the stone quarry on the land 
deeded to Knight. The quarry was to be worked in partnership with Beebe, a stonecutter by trade, 
and the quarry and fruit not to be consigned to any other person. 
 
Between the years 1850 and 1860 the value of Knight’s real estate holdings increased 
dramatically. Richard had begun the design and construction of his new home, presumably using 
stone cut from the quarry located on his property, and with help from brother-in-law Sidney. The 
1860 inscription in the stone lintel over the main front entrance to the Knight house probably, but 
not necessarily, was inscribed in the lintel before its installation, and before the final completion 
of construction of the house. 
 
On a map printed in 1858, the location of the stone quarry is shown along with what appears to 
be another structure surrounded by the quarry on the portion of the land owned by Sidney Beebe. 



 

 

There is no way to know what the structure was. It may have housed the equipment for cutting 
and fabrication of the stone blocks used in the house. 
 
In addition to the importance of the Knight’s new home, Richard and Emma were early active 
members of the Olmstead Universalist Church. They had first attended in 1838 when services 
were held in the Union House of Worship at the southeastern end of Butternut Ridge Road. In 
1847 the congregation had built a church at the corner of Lorain and Butternut Ridge roads. 
Richard Knight and Asher Coe were elected in 1849 to represent the congregation at the 
Universalist Association’s annual meeting at Huntington in Lorain County. Knight served as 
chairman. On November 5, 1851 Knight introduced a resolution to rent pews for the church in 
order to defray the expenses of ministerial labor for the coming year. His name disappears from 
the church records after that date. 
 
Richard Knight was also active in the township, acting as one of the trustees in 1857, along with 
N. H. Austin, G. W. Laughlin; clerk, Eli Clemens; and treasurer, J. Spencer.  Richard and Emma 
Knight’s fourth child, Howard W. Knight was born in 1861, most likely in the new home built by 
his father. 
 
Sidney Beebe’s wife, Sylva, passed away on December 20, 1863, at the young age of 33. Sidney 
Beebe remarried and, on December 1, 1865, Sidney and his second wife, Adaline, sold Sidney’s 
original sixty-eight and one half acres of Lot 4 to Richard Knight, and his son, Eber Knight for 
$3,425. Less than a year later, on November 3, 1866, the Knight’s sold Beebe’s land, for $4,000, 
to William Geiger, owner of many stone quarries. Geiger purchased sixteen acres of Lot 14 from 
L. G. Porter for $2,400 on August 19, 1871. Seven months later, on March 19, 1872, Knight and 
Geiger traded small pieces of land, most likely to give Geiger full control of the stone quarry. 
Knight deeded a piece of Lot 4 to Geiger, and Geiger deeded a piece of Lot 14 to Knight. 
 
On January 13, 1873 Richard Knight sold his Lot 4 and Lot 14 properties for $9,300 to Paul and 
Mahitabel Jenkins, thus continuing the profitable journey, begun by Nehemiah Hubbard, for the 
owners of the Knight home and property. After the sale, Richard and Emma Knight moved to 
Akron. Richard eventually became the publisher of the Akron City Times, serving in that role 
“with great devotion” from 1875 to 1883.  
 
Paul Jenkins and his wife lived in their new home for almost two years before selling the house 
and farm to Clinton and Ellen Fauver, for $10,000, on December 17, 1874. Fauver owned the 
house and farm for less than four months, selling it all to Spicer H. and Selina Shaw for $11,000, 
on April 1, 1875. Spicer Shaw had previously owned land in Olmstead Township, having 
purchased 20 acres of land on Lot 5 from Charles Olmstead, on August 5, 1854. Less than two 
years later, Spicer sold that land on April 21, 1856. Little else is known about Spicer Shaw. His 
son, Arthur B. Shaw, lived on Railroad Avenue in Olmstead Falls and was described in later 
years as an efficient and capable station agent on the Lake Shore & Michigan Southern Railway, 
in Olmstead Falls, Ohio. 
 



 

 

Richard Knight’s brother-in-law, Sidney L. Beebe died in 1879. His second wife, Adaline Beebe 
lived to the age of 80. She died in 1913. Both are buried in Evergreen Cemetery on Center Ridge 
Road. 
 
On April 14, 1880, William Biddulph bought the Richard H. Knight house, and its seventy-one 
and one half acres of Porter Road farmland, from Spicer H. Shaw for the surprisingly lower price 
of $7,000. Perhaps other undisclosed considerations were included in the purchase agreement. At 
the time, William, a young man of 32, was a farmer, and married to Thirza (Hubbard) Biddulph. 
They had two children. 
 
William Biddulph was the oldest child of John and Christina Biddulph. John’s father and 
brothers had a long history in land acquisition and sales in Cuyahoga County. William was 
named after his paternal grandfather, who lived in Brooklyn Township, Ohio. John and Christina 
lived on the south side of Butternut Ridge Road, on approximately 100 acres of farm land, in 
Olmstead Township. John Biddulph had purchased the land on April 24, 1865 and moved there, 
from Brooklyn, Ohio, with his entire family. In addition to his parents, William had a younger 
brother, George, and three younger sisters, Louise (Hurd), Caroline (James) and Rose (Sheer). 
 
William and Thirza Biddulph had been married in Berea on March 20, 1872. When they moved 
into their Italianate stone house in April, 1880, they had two sons, John W. Biddulph, (named 
after his paternal grandfather) born in 1873 and Franklin H. Biddulph, born in 1875. Daughter 
Neva E. Biddulph was born January 19, 1883. Their fourth child, Ralph Ray Biddulph, was born 
February 16, 1885. Both children were born at home. 
 
William and Thirza Biddulph had lived in their new home for only thirteen years when Thirza 
died on December 12, 1893, at the young age of 43. She left behind a husband of 45, daughter 
Neva, age 10, and sons John, age 20, Frank, age 18 and Ralph, age 8. Thirza was buried in 
Evergreen Cemetery. 
 
On January 1, 1895, William Biddulph, age 46, married Anna M. Hunger, age 26 at the Church 
of Latter Day Saints. Later evidence suggests she was the daughter of Gerhard and Marie Hunger 
who lived on Lot 5, directly across Porter Road from William. Gerhard and Biddulph exchanged 
ownership of land on Lot 5 twice in two years, 1905 and 1907. William and Anna’s first child, a 
daughter, Josephine B. Biddulph was born in 1895. Their second daughter, Ruth A. Biddulph, 
was born in 1897. Presumably, both daughters were born at home, at 4302 Porter Road. 
 
On November 7, 1896, Richard Harrison Knight passed away at the age of 83, in Akron, Ohio. 
His wife Emma had died earlier that same year, at the age of 76. We do not know for sure where 
they are buried, maybe Akron, or possibly Ridgeville Ohio. 
 



 

 

 
 

Knight – Biddulph House ca 1900 
 
In the 1910 Census, William Biddulph’s occupation was listed as General Manager of a carriage 
store. He was 62 years old and had been married to Anna for sixteen years. Their daughters, 
Josephine and Ruth were 15 and 13 years old, respectively. By 1910 William had built a second 
house on his property, in the Craftsman style. His youngest son Ralph was 25 years old and had 
married Lucy Bell Underhill. Ralph and Lucy had no children and were listed in the 1910 Census 
as tenants in a house on Porter Road, a separate entry from William and Anna. Ralph was 
farming his father’s land and either he and Lucy or William and Anna lived in the stone house. 
Evidence strongly suggests William and Anna lived in the second house, which eventually 
became 4322 Porter Road. The house can be seen on a 1920 map of The Village of North 
Olmsted. It is occupied to this day. 
 
On May 4, 1919, William Biddulph escorted two women who were in need of directions from 
the train station to the home of his younger brother, George. The women were on their way to 
see George’s wife Josephine. Upon their arrival, the party of three discovered the bodies of 
William’s brother, George, age 69, and George’s third wife Josephine (Burford) Biddulph, age 
44, inside their home at 25896 Butternut Ridge Road (which was declared a North Olmsted 
Landmark in December 2011). George had murdered Josephine with a shotgun and then taken 
his own life with an old fashioned pistol. The motive was not known. It was a sensational story at 
the time. 
 



 

 

 
 

Most likely Anna Biddulph at home ca 1900 
 
William Biddulph passed away at age 74, on November 25, 1922. Anna was 54, Josephine was 
27 and Ruth was 25, when William died. He was buried in Evergreen Cemetery next to his first 
wife, Thirza. In June of 1922, five months before his death, William had deeded one acre of his 
land to Anna. In his will, William “devised” to Anna, the “house in which he currently resides” 
and the one acre of property that overlapped the northeast corner of Lot 4 and the southeast 
corner of Lot 14 (now 4322 Porter Road). William’s three sons, John, Frank and Ralph inherited 
the balance of William’s “property and buildings” on Lots 4 and 14. The property and its 
buildings can be seen on a 1930 map of North Olmsted Village, and are labeled as being owned 
by the three Biddulph brothers. The one acre of property given to Anna can also be seen outlined 
on the map. William’s will, the 1930 map, and the events outlined below, more than strongly 
suggest that, at the time of William’s death in 1922, he and Anna were living in the 1910 house 
that is now 4322 Porter Road. Ralph and Lucy, who were by then the parents of three or four 
children, were almost certainly living in the stone house at 4302 Porter Road. 
 
After his father’s death, Ralph Biddulph and his family lived in the stone house for another two 
years. Ralph continued farming the land. In 1924, Ralph founded the North Olmsted Basket and 
Feed Company, and purchased land at 26903 Butternut Ridge Road to build a new home for his 
family. Ralph and Lucy most likely moved into their new home in 1925. The Biddulph brothers 
presumably began renting the stone house after Ralph moved out. The tenants, or hired workers, 
may have farmed the land. Anna continued living in the house she inherited from William. 
 



 

 

In 1928, the Biddulph brothers, for the sum of $1.00, deeded a strip of land, forty feet wide and 
thirteen hundred and sixteen feet long, along the entire western edge of their property, to the 
Village of North Olmsted. The land contained one-half the width of the existing “Biddulph 
Drive” (now known as Martin Drive). 
 
Sometime after William’s death in 1922, (the date is unknown) Anna Biddulph married Arthur 
E. Weston. Arthur was obviously a man of some means. He owned seven sublots on Lot 47, and 
a parcel of land on Lot 48, along Hall (Columbia) Road, in Dover Township. Anna and Arthur 
may have lived in the house she inherited from William. 
 
Anna Biddulph Weston died on April 16, 1933, at age 65. Stunningly, Arthur died just six days 
later, on April 22nd. Anna’s will directed that her daughters, Josephine Limpert and Ruth 
Schindler, and her husband, Arthur Weston, each be given one-third ownership of her one acre of 
property on Lots 4 and 14. The stone house was not described or mentioned in Anna’s will. 
These events, and the associated deeds, further serve to illustrate that ownership of the majority 
of William Biddulph’s property, the stone house, and other buildings, had remained with Anna’s 
stepsons, John, Frank and Ralph. Additional events that occurred after Anna’s death also support 
this conclusion. 
 
When Arthur Weston died, his will directed that his one-third ownership of Anna’s property be 
shared by his two brothers, Burton and Charles Weston, and his sister Lucy Scheuring. Three 
months later, on July 31, 1933, Weston’s brothers and sister deeded their shares of the property 
to Josephine Limpert and Ruth Schindler. 
 
In 1939, the Biddulph brothers began selling off individual parcels of land located along the 
western edge of their property, on Biddulph Drive. They named the area containing the parcels 
“Thirza Park Acres,” after their mother. It appears the sales continued for about eight years, 
eventually ending in 1947, after the deaths of brothers John and Frank Biddulph. 
 
In a 1940 Census entry, Josephine Limpert, husband Herbert H., and their five children, lived in 
her mother’s 1910 house at 4322 Porter Road, on the one acre parcel of land that had been 
carved out of the Biddulph farm by Josephine’s father, William Biddulph. The next entry in the 
census lists Herbert’s brother and sister-in-law, Fred and wife Louise Limpert, as renters in the 
house next to 4322 Porter Road at “4320” Porter Road. They lived there with their daughter, son-
in-law and granddaughter. The house next to 4322 is 4302 Porter Road. Perhaps 4302 was 
transposed to “4320” in the 1940 census, or the address of 4302 in 1940 actually was 4320. In 
any event, it appears the Limpets’ were renting the stone house from their in-laws’ family, the 
Biddulph brothers. 
 
On April 26, 1944, Ruth (Schindler) Biddulph, then divorced and single, sold her share of the 
4322 Porter Road property to her sister, Josephine, for $2,300. Josephine now had full ownership 
of the property. Ruth remarried (Maurice Hanning) and lived in Shaker Heights for over thirty 
years. 
 



 

 

In 1944, big changes were in the air. Land description inconsistencies had occurred over many 
years due to descriptions in wills, and the various land transfers that had occurred between the 
farm land on Lots 4 and 14, and the one acre of land that was 4322 Porter Road. These 
inconsistencies were cleared up with a few deed transfers between the Biddulph brothers and 
Josephine Limpert, for a very important reason.  
 
On June 6, 1944, an important date in history no less, John, Frank and Ralph Biddulph 
completed the sale of two parcels of land encompassing an area of five acres, and containing 
their father’s stone house. The buyers were David and Catherine Williard, and their son and 
daughter-in-law. The sale also included a right-of-way, (over adjacent Biddulph land) which was 
needed to access the five acres of property that was isolated from Porter Road. The Williards 
owned the property for two years before selling it in 1946.  
 
On June 14, 1946, Eunice Cook (wife of Harrison C. Cook) purchased the stone house and its 
five acres of land, including the right-of-way, from the Williard family. The Cook family would 
live in the stone house for eighteen years. 
 
In 1946, John Biddulph had already been dead for two years. He was shot during the robbery of 
his gas station, on July 23, 1944, in Cleveland. He died the next day, from the wounds suffered 
during the robbery. John Biddulph, age 71, was buried in Evergreen Cemetery. His wife, Mary 
died five years later on September 10, 1949, and was buried next to her husband. 
 
November 3, 1947, Franklin Biddulph, age 72, passed away. He was buried in Evergreen 
Cemetery. His wife, Nettie, lived another twenty-five years. She and Frank are buried near the 
graves of John and Mary Biddulph. 
 
Ralph Biddulph continued through the years to run his Basket and Feed Company until his death 
in March, 1950, at age 65. Ralph’s widow, Lucy (Underhill) Biddulph, wrote a brief history of 
the founding of the company, prior to her death in 1975. During his life in North Olmsted, Ralph 
Biddulph served on the North Olmsted Council for twenty years. He was instrumental in 
obtaining the first pumper for the Fire Department. His late brother Franklin’s son, William M. 
Biddulph, was the North Olmsted Fire Chief when his uncle Ralph passed away at home at 
26903 Butternut Ridge Road. Ralph and Lucy are buried in Evergreen Cemetery, near the graves 
of Lucy’s parents and Ralph’s brothers, John and Frank. The graves of Ralph’s parents and 
stepmother are also not far away. 
 
The three Biddulph brothers had all died within a period of six years. On December 21, 1950, 
their immediate heirs deeded all of the remaining farmland property on lots 4 and 14 to Fire 
Chief William M. Biddulph, the oldest grandson of William Biddulph. We don’t know for sure 
what the reasons were at the time. 
 
Two years later, Chief Biddulph died in a plane crash, in August, 1952, at the age of 44. He and 
his father, Franklin, had both owned homes on Porter Road where they had lived with their 
families.  Fire Chief William M. Biddulph’s wife, B. Bernice Biddulph, inherited the farmland 
when her husband died. She sold the land on September 10, 1954 to Edward Helt, who in turn 



 

 

sold it in 1955 to Libbey Lee, Inc. The land was eventually resold in early 1963 to Milkap 
Building Co. Infrastructure improvements were added and new homes were built by residential 
developers, beginning in 1964. The residential development on Porter Road is still known as 
North Park Estates. 
 
In 1963, Josephine Limpert was a widow and still living in the 1910 Craftsman style house she 
had inherited from her mother, Anna Biddulph Weston. On March 13th, she sold it and its one 
acre of land, for $12,500. We don’t know where Josephine lived after that. She died four years 
later, in June, 1967, and was buried in Evergreen Cemetery, next to her husband, Herbert, who 
had died in March, 1959. 
 
In 1964, Eunice Cook, by then a widow, sold the Knight-Biddulph stone house to Steve and 
Alfreda Flagner, of Brooklyn, Ohio. The Flagners used the house as a rental property. 
 
In 1982 several fires occurred in the then “abandoned, dilapidated” old house. Neighbors were 
very concerned. In February 1984, the city of North Olmsted ordered the demolition of the 
house. On February 27, 1984, the story of the Demolition Appeal Hearing appeared in the 
newspaper, along with accounts of childhood memories from Ralph Biddulph’s daughters, Dora 
Adams and Irene Smith. A story on the grim future for the historic house appeared on the front 
page of the Sun Herald on March 1, 1984. On May 1, 1984 the demolition order was overturned 
by City Council when the Flagners presented a contract for repair of the house. At the City 
Council meeting, Alfreda said they had been renting the house to tenants for “twenty years” and 
planned to live there themselves. The repair work was ordered by Council to be completed in 
ninety days. However, with the granting of extensions of the deadline over the next three years, 
the repair work was finally completed in 1985. In July of 1985, architect Steve McQuillin and 
Landmarks Commission member Betty Lord included the house in the Ohio Historic Inventory 
survey for the North Olmsted Landmarks Commission. They recommended that the house be 
placed on the National Register. 
 
On March 9, 2000, William Kraley purchased the house from Alfreda Flagner. Steve Flagner had 
passed away December 15, 1989. Since purchasing the house, Mr. Kraley has continued to make 
improvements to the exterior and interior of the house, including a new roof, and upgrades to the 
electrical and plumbing systems. 
 
In 2010, the Landmarks Commission awarded a recognition plaque to the house, designating it a 
North Olmsted Historic Building. At a meeting of the Landmarks Commission, the plaque was 
presented to Mr. Kraley. 
 
In light of the strength of the architectural design, the use of native materials and the rich human 
history that has enveloped the Knight-Biddulph house for over one hundred and fifty-two years, 
the Landmarks Commission recommends that the Richard H. Knight-William Biddulph house be 
officially dedicated as a North Olmsted Landmark in 2013.  

 



 

 

Knight Family Genealogical History 
 
 
1. Jonathan Knight born in Norwich, Connecticut died in Ridgeville Township, Lorain, OH  
    m. Deborah (Barber) Knight born in Connecticut died in Ridgeville Twp., Lorain, OH 
         Jonathan and Deborah are assumed to be buried in Ridgeville Township 
 
Jonathan and Deborah moved from Connecticut to Ridgeville Township, Lorain, OH in 1832. 
Jonathan was of English descent. He was a farmer in Connecticut and Ridgeville Township, 
Ohio. Jonathan and Deborah had seven children. Richard Harrison Knight was their second son. 
 
Richard H. Knight, son of Jonathan and Deborah Knight: 
 

2. Richard Harrison Knight  b. 11/11/1813 Litchfield, Connecticut d. November 7, 1896  
    in Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio 

         m. Emma Beebe b. 1820 d. 1896  
              They were married on December 31, 1837 in Ridgeville Township, Lorain, Ohio 
                      
Children of Richard and Emma Knight:         
 
        3. Eber Harrison Knight b. January 1839 d. 6/9/1921 in Birmingham, Jefferson, Alabama 
   m. Eliza J. Knight, age 17, born in 1843.  
            They had a son Richard Lahue Knight born in 1864. 
            They had a daughter Emma, born in 1868. 
            In 1870 he was married to Florence L. (Taylor) age 21, with a daughter Emma, age 2. 
            In 1900 he was married to Fannie C. (Johnston) age 35, born 3/28/1865.  
            They were married in 1888. They had a daughter, Alice, age 12, born in 1888.  
            Eber was a carpenter. He also lived in Grand Rapids, Michigan             
 
        3. Ellen Knight b.1840 date of death unknown.  
            She was a teacher. She lived in Cuyahoga Falls, Ohio             
 
        3. Clarence Richard Knight b. 8/9/1850 d. 3/12/1919  
             
   Attended Lombard University, at Galesburg, Ill. at the age of seventeen for four years 
            Attended Ohio Wesleyan University at Delaware, Ohio, 1871-1872 
            He came to Akron in 1872 and attended the new Bucheal College 
            Clarence matriculated and finished the course in 1873 
            In December 1873 he took charge of the Akron City Times Editorial Department 
 
        3. Howard W. Knight  b. 1861 Date of death unknown.                 



 

 

Biddulph Family Genealogical History 
 
 
1. John Biddulph b.9/28/1826 Strafford Shire England d.12/31/1890 North Olmsted, OH  
    m. Christina Bliekert  b.1830 Germany d.2/27/1901 North Olmsted, OH 
  
John and Christina are buried in Butternut Cemetery. They moved from Brooklyn, OH to North 
Olmsted in 1865. John acquired the land in April, 1865 from William Collister, who had 
purchased the land from Charles Stetson. Stetson had purchased the land from William H. Usher, 
heir of Watrous Usher. 
 
Children of John and Christina Biddulph: 
 
    2. William Biddulph  born 12/24/1848 in Brooklyn, Ohio d. November 1922 
        m. Thirza E. Hubbard  (first wife) on 3/20/1872 in Berea, b. 1/1/1850 d. 12/12/1893 
        m. Anna M. Hunger (second wife) in 1894, b.3/4/1868 d. 4/16/1933 
             Wm. bought the R. K. Knight stone house on Porter Road on 4/5/1880 from S. H. Shaw. 
             (See letter from Elma Gifford to Almera Reitz) 
             William, Thirza and Anna are buried in Evergreen Cemetery 
 
    2. George Biddulph born 5/23/1850 in Brooklyn, Ohio d.5/4/1919 suicide 
        m. Almera F. Kennedy (first wife) on 12/24/1876, b.8/29/1849 d.4/1/1900 
        m. Stella M. Kennedy (second wife) on 8/31/1901, b.9/18/1861 d.3/5/1918 
        m. Josephine Burford (third wife) in 1918 b.ca 1875 d.5/4/1919, murdered 
             George built the house at 25896 Butternut Ridge Road in 1877, on Lot 28 
             George, Almera and Stella are buried in Butternut Ridge Cemetery 
 
    2. Louise Biddulph born 8/21/1852 in Brooklyn, Ohio d. February 1933 
        m. Albert W. Hurd  b.1849  d.6/7/1916 
             Louise and Albert are buried in Butternut Ridge Cemetery 
        3. Carrie (Hurd) Crepps 
        3. Vernon Hurd   b.1875 d.5/19/1960 Vernon is buried in Butternut Ridge Cemetery 
 
    2. Caroline (Carrie) Biddulph  born 1/3/1856 in Brooklyn, Ohio 
        m. Ralph A. James on 12/13/1877. Ralph was born in Staten Island, NY 4/12/1841 
        3. Addie C. (James) Hanford 
        3. Arthur R. James 
        3. Neva L. (James) Pickard 
 
    2. Rose A. Biddulph born 7/2/1859 in Brooklyn, Ohio d. February 1939 
        m. George D. Sheer d. April 1937  Rose and George are buried in Columbia Station 
        3. Walter A. Sheer m. Rhea (Green) Sheer   Infant son Ralph G. Sheer died September 1923 
        3. Minnie R. (Biddulph) Bray (Walter) 
        3. Ralph G. Sheer d. February 1921 
 



 

 

 
Children of William and Thirza Biddulph:     
 
        3. John W. Biddulph b.7/7/1873 d.7/23/1944  
            m. Mary A. Rafferty b.1872 d. 9/10/1949 
                 They lived at 1368 West 83rd Street in Cleveland 
                 John died at home of gunshot wounds suffered during a robbery of his gas station 
                 John and Mary are buried in Evergreen Cemetery                 
            4. Cornelia (Biddulph) Knutsen (Herman) 
            4. Joyce (Biddulph) Jenkins (Dale) 
 
        3. Franklin H. Biddulph b.1875 d.11/3/1947    
            m. Nettie L. Reublin b.1886 d.1972  
                 They lived at 4881 Porter Road 
                 Franklin and Netti are buried in Evergreen Cemetery                  
            4. William M. Biddulph b.1908 d. August 1952 in plane crash, N.O.F.D. Fire Chief 
                m. B. “Billie” Bernice Clarke 
                     William and Billie lived at 4733 Porter Road 
                5. David S. Biddulph b.1933 d.1990 buried in Evergreen cemetery 
                5. Susan Biddulph 
                5. Diane (Biddulph) Barber  
            4. Donald Biddulph b. 1916 (m. Evelyn) 
            4. Clifford Biddulph b. 1911 (m. Rita) Clifford was a Member of the N.O.P.D.  
            4. Marion (Biddulph) Eskins (Howard) 
            4. Louise (Biddulph) Guild (Norman) 
 
        3. Neva E. Biddulph b. 1/19/1883 d. December 24, 1962    
            m. William R. Bowman Jr. d. July 1958 at home 
                 They lived at 3576 West 159th street in Cleveland 
                 Neva died at the home of her sister, Josephine Limpert, at 4322 Porter Road 
            4. W. Robert Bowman 
 
        3. Ralph Ray Biddulph b.2/16/1885 at home in the stone house on Porter Road 
                d. March 1950 in his home at 26903 Butternut Ridge Road                 
            m. Lucy Dell Underhill b.1888 d. March 1975 
                 Ralph founded the North Olmsted Feed & Basket Company in 1924 
                 Ralph and Lucy are buried in Evergreen Cemetery                 
             4. Rhea (Biddulph) (Beeler) Shaughnessy 
             4. Dora (Biddulph) (Culliton) Adams 
             4. Irene (Biddulph) Smith b. 1919-20 (m. Wayne) 
             4. Raymond Biddulph (m. Catherine) 
             4. Herman Biddulph b. 1925-26 (m. Helen))       
         
 
 



 

 

William  Biddulph  married Anna M. Hunger (second wife) in 1894 
 
Children of William and Anna Biddulph: 
 
        3. Josephine B. Biddulph b. 12/12/1895 d. June 1967    
            m. Herbert H. Limpert b. 1893-94 d. 1959 (age 47 in 1940 Census) 
                 Josephine and Herbert lived at 4322 Porter Road, next to 4302 Porter Road 
                 They are buried in Evergreen Cemetery 
             4. Helen (Limpert) Bardwell  b. 1917-18 (age 22 in 1940 Census) 
    4. Doris (Limpert) Bish  b. 1919-20 (age 20 in 1940 Census) 
             4. Ruth (Limpert) Leach  b. 1920-21 (age 19 in 1940 Census) 
             4. Shirley (Limpert) Bohn  b. 1924-25 (age 15 in 1940 Census) 
             4. Roger H. Limpert  b. 1935-36 (age 4 in 1940 Census) 
         
        3. Ruth A. Biddulph b. 4/10/1897 d. After 1976 
            m. Herbert J. Schindler  
                 Divorced 1943 
                 They lived on Dover Center Road 
            m. Maurice F. Hanning Before 1953 (div Mary Hanning) d. Before 1975 
                 They lived in Shaker Heights 
 



 

 

History of Dover Township 

 

 
 

Location map of the Connecticut Western Reserve 
 
 

 
 

Location map of Dover Township 7 in the Western Reserve 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

Location of Lot 4 in Dover Township (1876) 
 

• The Connecticut Western Reserve was land that was claimed by the State of Connecticut 
from 1662 to 1800, in the Northwest Territory, in what is mostly part of Northeast Ohio. 
The area was a 120 mile wide strip of territory containing 3,966,321 acres of land, 
extending southward from the shores of Lake Erie, to approximately 3 miles south of 
Route 224. 

• In late 1795, or early 1796, Connecticut sold the land in the Western Reserve for $1.2 
million to the Connecticut Land Company, a group of investors, mostly from Suffield, 
Connecticut. 

• In 1796, The Connecticut Land Company sent surveyors, led by Moses Cleaveland, to 
survey the land in the Western Reserve. The survey was completed in 1806. The land was 



 

 

divided into Ranges which were then divided into Townships. Each township was intended 
to be five miles square, with a total area of 25 square miles. 

• Dover was Township 7 in Range 15 of the Western Reserve, located in the northwest 
corner of Cuyahoga County, immediately north of Olmstead Township 6, also in Range 15. 
Township 7 was five miles wide and extended approximately 5 miles north to the shores of 
Lake Erie. It was bounded by Avon to the west and Rockport to the east. 

• Dover Center Road was planned to run north and south through the center of the township. 

• The original investors in Dover Township were Nehemiah Hubbard and Joshua Stow who 
lived in Middletown, Connecticut. They received the deeds for their land in 1807. 

• Hubbard and Stow had the land surveyed by Joseph Darrow and divided into square lots of 
160 acres each, measuring one half mile on each side. The lots ran in rows from east to 
west and north to south in a checkerboard pattern. They were numbered from 1 to 10 in 
each row, commencing from the southwest corner of the township. 

• It was discovered during the survey that the township was not five miles square and that the 
lots running north and south along the west side of the township were only 146 acres each. 

• From 1807 until 1810, Hubbard and Stow owned all of the township lots together. On May 
12, 1810, Hubbard deeded 67.5 acres to Stow to equalize their land ownership in the 
township. 

• Joseph Cahoon migrated to Dover from Vermont, with his wife and seven children. On the 
morning of October 10, 1810, they settled on land purchased through Datus Kelley, the 
agent for Hubbard and Stowe.  Joseph Cahoon built the first grist-mill west of the 
Cuyahoga River on what is now called Cahoon's Creek. The frame was raised September 
10, 1813, the day of Perry's victory on Lake Erie. Joseph and his son Joel quarried two 
mill-stones in the creek. They also erected a saw-mill nearby and likewise a distillery, 
where they made peach brandy. Mr. Cahoon engaged to some extent in peach culture. 

• On October 10, 1810, Ashael Porter, wife Rebecca and their children, together with 
Ashael’s nephew, Leverett Johnson, then age 17, came to Dover Township from 
Massachusetts. Ashael Porter eventually became the first postmaster of the township. 

• The civil township of Dover was formed November 4, 1811 and embraced a large tract of 
land extending nearly 25 miles along Lake Erie. Adjacent townships were annexed into 
Dover Township over a period of time, creating the larger Dover Township by March 6, 
1812. The first township election of trustees was held April 6, 1812. 

• Almost immediately after his arrival in Dover, young Leverett Johnson began alone to clear 
land on Lot 58, while continuing to live with his uncle, Ashael Porter. Two years later, in 
1812, Johnson settled on Lot 13, which was diagonally adjacent to Lot 4.  

• In 1814, Leverett Johnson married Abigail Cahoon and brought his new bride to the new 
log-house he had erected on his farm on Lot 13. Leverett Johnson became a prominent 
member of the township. He was called upon to serve in several important positions. He 
was Justice of the Peace from 1827 to 1833 and served five terms in the State legislature. 
He died on the old homestead in 1856.  



 

 

• In 1815, Nehemiah Porter, his wife, their two children, and bachelor brother Wells Porter, 
located on Lot 45. After residing with Nehemiah two years, Wells Porter made a settlement 
on Lot 15, diagonally adjacent to Lot 4. He later moved to Cleveland where he died in 
1877.  In 1816, another Porter brother, Ebenezer, settled in Dover. Ebenezer and Nehemiah 
Porter resided in the township until they died. The Porter brothers were all sons of Joseph 
Porter. 

• On December 26, 1816, Joshua Stow deeded land to Nehemiah Hubbard in order to split up 
their land holdings so that each lot in the township had only one owner. On May 12, 1825, 
the State of Connecticut also deeded the same lots to Hubbard. 

• In 1826 the first sales of land to settlers began.  

• Joseph Porter, father of the Porter brothers, migrated to Dover in 1826 with four of his 
children, Jemima, John, Leonard and Rebecca. They travelled the Erie Canal to Buffalo, 
then by lake to Cleveland, and the rest of the way by stage. Mr. Porter settled on Lot 14, 
north of Lot 4. He died there in 1844 and was buried in Evergreen Cemetery. 

• In 1832, Nehemiah Hubbard sold the 
half mile square, 160 acre Lot 4 to 
Ebenezer Porter. In 1845, Ebenezer 
Porter sold 20 acres in the northwest 
quadrant of Lot 4 to his brother John. 
In 1846, Ebenezer Porter sold the 
remaining 140 acres of Lot 4 to 
Richard H. Knight and Sidney L. 
Beebe together. On January 4, 1850, 
Richard Knight and Sidney Beebe 
divided the 140 acres of land between 
themselves. 

• After the Lot 4 split of 1850, Richard 
Knight began the design and 
construction of a new stone house. He 
built his house on Lot 4 of the 
township, sometime between 1850 and 
1860, using stone from the nearby 
stone quarry located on Lot 4. 

• R. H. Knight was a trustee of Dover Township in 1856 and 1857. S. L. Beebe was a trustee 
of Dover Township in 1860. 

• In 1901, the northern part of Dover Township broke away and soon formed the village of 
Bay, which became Bay Village in 1950. In 1908 the southeastern part of Dover Township 
became a part of North Olmsted when it was incorporated in 1908. In 1911 the village of 
Dover was incorporated to the south of Bay. It eventually changed its name to Westlake in 
1940. 

• In 1951, North Olmsted becomes a city when population reaches 5,000 residents. 

 
1858 Map of Lot 4 after the lot split of 1850 



 

 

Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph House 

4302 Porter Road 

North Olmsted, Ohio 44070 

 

 

 
SECTION 2 

 
PHOTOGRAPHS 

 
 

House Photos – Exterior and Interior 

1. Front Elevation – View from North  

2. East Elevation – View from East 

3. West Elevation – View from Northwest  

4. West Elevation – Second Floor Detail 

5. South Elevation – View from Southwest 

6. Downspout Detail 

7. Front Entrance 

8. Front Entrance Detail 

9. Window, Cornice and Brackets 

10. Cornice and Bracket Detail 

11. Porter Road Entrance Wall 

12. View of Front Entry from Dining Room 

13. Dining Room 

14. Front Room - East Side of House 

15. Front Room - East – Fireplace 

16. Front Room - East – Door to Exterior 

17. Doorway from Kitchen to Dining Room 

18. Second Floor – Central Hallway 

19. Kitchen – South Wall 

20. Kitchen – East Wall 

21. Window – Interior Detail 

22. Front Entrance Doors – Interior View 

23. Southwest Stairway to Second Floor 

24. Built-in Bookcase 

25. Attic View – Hip Roof Framing 

26. Basement Stair 

27. Basement Stone Foundation and First 

Floor Framing 
 

Portrait Photos 

28. William Biddulph 

29. Thirza Biddulph 

30. Ralph & Lucy Biddulph Family Portrait 

31. Anna Biddulph 

32. Children of John & Christina Biddulph, 

ca. 1915 

33. Josephine Biddulph 

34. Ruth Biddulph 
   

 
 



 

 

 

Photo 1 

Front Elevation 

View from North 

 

Photo 2  

East Elevation  

View from East 

 

Photo 3  

West Elevation  

View from Northwest 



 

 

 

 

Photo 4  

West Elevation  

Second Floor Detail  

 

Photo 5  

South Elevation  

View from Southwest 

 

Photo 6  

Downspout Detail 



 

 

  

 

Photo 7  

Front Entrance 

 

Photo 8  

Front Entrance Detail 

 
 
 
 

 
 



 

 

 

Photo 9  

Window, Cornice and Brackets 

 

Photo 10  

Cornice and Bracket Detail 

 

Photo 11  

Porter Road Entrance Wall 

 



 

 

 

Photo 12  

View of Front Entry from 

Dining Room  

 

Photo 13  

Dining Room 

 

 

Photo 14  

Front Room  

East Side of House 

 

 



 

 

  

Photo 15  

Front Room - East  

Fireplace  

Photo 16  

Front Room - East  

Door to Exterior 

  

Photo 17  

Doorway from Kitchen to Dining Room  

Photo 18 

Second Floor Central Hallway 

 



 

 

 

 

Photo 19  

Kitchen – South Wall 

 

Photo 20  

Kitchen – East Wall 

 
 
 
 



 

 

  

Photo 21  

Window – Interior Detail 

Photo 22  

Front Entrance Doors 

Interior View 

  

Photo 23  

Southwest Stairway to  

Second Floor 

Photo 24  

Built-in Bookcase 

 



 

 

 

Photo 25  

Attic View of Hip Roof Framing 

 

Photo 26  

Basement Stair 

 

Photo 27  

Basement Stone Foundation 

and First Floor Framing 

 



 

 

 

 

Photo 28  

William Biddulph (1848-1922) 

 

 

Photo 29   

Thirza Biddulph (1851-1893)           

Photo 30 

Ralph Ray Biddulph and Lucy Underhill Biddulph with Ray, 

Rhea, Dora, Irene and Herman (not pictured) 

 



 

 

 

  

Photo 31 

Anna Biddulph (1868-1933) 

Photo 32  

Rose Sheer, George Biddulph, Louise Hurd, 

William Biddulph, Caroline James 

  

Photo 33  

Josephine Biddulph – Oldest daughter of  

William and Anna Biddulph 

   Photo 34  

Ruth Biddulph – Youngest daughter of  

William and Anna Biddulph      



 

 

Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph House 

4302 Porter Road 

North Olmsted, Ohio 44070 
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DRAWINGS 

 
 

List of Drawings 

• Lot 4 in North Olmsted Village from a Map dated 1920 

• Lot 4 in North Olmsted Village from a Map dated 1930 

• Partial Lot 4 in North Olmsted from a 1951 aerial Photograph 

• Lot 4 Site Plan drawing of the Porter – Beebe - Knight properties in 1858 

• 2013 Site Plan drawing of the Knight – Biddulph property  

• 2013 First Floor Plan of the Knight - Biddulph House  (now owned by William Kraley) 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

Lot 4 North Olmsted Village from a 1920 North Olmsted Village Map 
William Biddulph Property 71 ½ Acres 

Knight-Biddulph House 1860 (Blue) and William Biddulph House 1910 (Red) 
 



 

 

 
 

Lot 4 North Olmsted Village from a 1930 North Olmsted Village Map 
Knight-Biddulph House and Farm Property (Blue) 

Anna Biddulph Weston House and 1-Acre Property (Green) 
 
 

 
 

Partial Lot 4 North Olmsted from a 1951 Aerial Photograph 
Knight-Biddulph House (Yellow) and Farm 4302 Porter Road 

Josephine Limpert House (Red) 4322 Porter Road 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Richard H. Knight – William Biddulph House 

4302 Porter Road 

North Olmsted, Ohio 44070 
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